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CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Haidian Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is
located at Suites 2701-2705 & 2715-2716, 27th
Floor, Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance
Street, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the

following principal activities:

° property development

° manufacture and distribution of watches and
timepieces

° manufacture and distribution of timber
products

° property investment

° manufacture and distribution of enamelled

copper wires

Except for the manufacture and distribution of
enamelled copper wires which commenced
operation in the current year, there were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which also include Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, securities measured at fair
value through profit or loss and certain available-
for-sale investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiaries and a jointly-controlled entity for the
year ended 31 December 2005. The results of
subsidiaries and a jointly-controlled entity are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has
been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. This method involves allocating the
cost of the business combinations to the fair value
of the assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
equity holders in the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the
Group and are adopted for the first time for the

current year’s financial statements:

2.1

2.2
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HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 11 Construction Contracts

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

HKAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition of

Amendment  Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKAS 40 Investment Property

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-

depreciable Assets

HK-Int 3 Revenue - Pre-completion Contracts for the
Sale of Development Properties
HK-Int 4 Leases — Determination of the Length of

Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
Land Leases
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 14,
16, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23, 27, 28, 33, 37, HKFRS 2,
and HK-Int 4 has had no material impact on the
accounting policies of the Group and the Company
and the methods of computation in the Group’s

and the Company’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority
interests on the face of the consolidated balance
sheet, consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and

other disclosures.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related
parties and affected the Group’s related party
disclosures.

The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is

summarised as follows:
(a) HKAS 17 - Leases

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings
held for own use were stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
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31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(a) HKAS 17 - Leases (continued)

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group’s
leasehold interest in land and buildings is
separated into leasehold land and leasehold
buildings. The Group’s leasehold land is
classified as an operating lease, because
the title of the land is not expected to pass
to the Group by the end of the lease term,
and is classified as prepaid land lease
payments, while leasehold buildings will be
classified as part of property, plant and
equipment. Prepaid land lease payments
under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently amortised on the
straight-line basis over the lease term. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property,

plant and equipment.

This change in accounting policy has had
no material effect on the consolidated
income statement and accumulated losses.
The comparative amounts for the year
ended 31 December 2004 in the
consolidated balance sheet have been
restated to reflect the reclassification of the
leasehold land.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(b)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial
Instruments

In prior years, the Group classified its
investments in equity securities as
investment securities and long term
investment held for non-trading purposes
and were stated at cost, and the Group’s
share of the investee company’s net assets
value (the “Deemed Cost”) at the time of its
transfer to a long term investment,

respectively, less any impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 39, these
investment securities and long term
investment held by the Group at 1 January
2005 of HK$20,240,000 and HK$3,477,000,
respectively, are designated as available-for-
sale investments under the provisions of
HKAS 39 and are stated at fair value with
gains or losses being recognised as a
separate component of equity until
subsequent derecognition or impairment
and at the Deemed Cost, respectively, as
more fully explained in note 2.5.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial

Instruments (continued)

In prior years, the Group classified its
investment in equity securities for trading
purposes as short term investments, and
were stated at their fair values on an
individual basis with gains and losses
recognised in the income statement. Upon
the adoption of HKAS 39, these investments
held by the Group at 1 January 2005 in the
amount of HK$12,792,000 are designated
as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss under the transitional provisions of
HKAS 39 and accordingly are stated at fair
value with gains or losses being recognised
in the income statement.

The effects of the above changes are
summarised in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKAS 39,
comparative amounts have not been

restated.
(c) HKAS 40 - Investment property

In prior years, changes in the fair values of
investment properties were dealt with as
movements in the investment property
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
was insufficient to cover a deficit, on a
portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit was
charged to the income statement. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus was credited
to the income statement to the extent of
the deficit previously charged.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2005
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 HIRBETEBYERRERN 2

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS & (&)
(continued)
(¢ HKAS 40 - Investment property ) TEAEFEAFIR-BREYWE

(d)

(continued)

Upon the adoption of HKAS 40, gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the
income statement in the year in which they

arise.

The adoption of HKAS 40 has had no
material impact on the consolidated income
statement and accumulated losses.

Investment property is now presented
separately on the face of the consolidated
balance sheet. Comparative amounts have
been reclassified to conform with the current

year’s presentation.

HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and
HKAS 36 - Impairment of Assets

In prior years, goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in
the year of acquisition and was not
recognised in the income statement until
disposal or impairment of the acquired
businesses.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after
1 January 2001 was capitalised and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life and was subject to
impairment testing when there was any

indication of impairment.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(d) HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and
HKAS 36 - Impairment of Assets
(continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36
has resulted in the Group ceasing annual
goodwill amortisation and commencing
testing for impairment at the cash-
generating unit level annually (or more
frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying

value may be impaired).

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have
required the Group to eliminate at 1 January
2005 the carrying amounts of accumulated
amortisation with a corresponding
adjustment to the cost of goodwill. Goodwill
previously eliminated against the
consolidated reserves remains eliminated
against the consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in the income statement when
all or part of the business to which the
goodwill relates is disposed of or when a
cash-generating unit to which the goodwill

relates become impaired.

The effect of the above changes are
summarised in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 3,
comparative amounts have not been
restated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HARBETERMBRBEN 2R
& (®)

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.2
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(e)

HK-Int 3 - Revenue - Pre-completion
Contracts for the Sale of Development

Properties

Properties under development are stated at
cost which includes all development
expenditure, interest charges and other
costs directly attributable to such properties.

Properties under development with pre-
completion contracts entered into on or
before 31 December 2004 for the sale of
those properties, are stated at cost plus
attributable profits less any foreseeable
losses, and deposits and instalments
received. The total estimated profit of such
properties is apportioned over the entire
period of construction to reflect the progress
of the development. On this basis, profit
recognised on the pre-sold portion of the
properties is calculated by reference to the
proportion of construction costs incurred up
to the balance sheet date, to the estimated
total construction costs to completion, but
is limited to the amount of sales deposits
and instalments received and with due
allowance for contingencies (the
“Percentage of Completion Method”).
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(e) HK-Int 3 - Revenue - Pre-completion
Contracts for the Sale of Development
Properties (continued)

HK-Int 3, which is effective for the pre-
completion contracts for sale of
development properties entered into on or
after 1 January 2005, generally requires
revenue from the sale of properties to be
recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties have
been transferred to the buyers and the
Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the properties sold, which is
usually at the time when the Group has no
further substantial acts to complete under

the contracts.

The Group has not applied HK-Int 3
retrospectively to pre-completion contracts
for the sale of development properties
entered into before 1 January 2005 in these
consolidated financial statements, which
continues to be accounted for on the
Percentage of Completion Method.

The effect of the above changes are

summarised in note 2.4 to the financial

statements.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 HIRBETEBYERRERN 2

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS & (&)
(continued)
i) HK(SIC)-Int 21 - Income Taxes - ) EB (EKREZES)-RES21

Recovery of Revalued Non-depreciable
Assets

In prior periods, deferred tax arising on the
revaluation of investment properties was
recognised based on the tax rate that would
be applicable upon the sale of the
investment properties.

Upon the adoption of HK(SIC)-Int 21,
deferred tax arising on the revaluation of
the Group’s investment properties is
determined depending on whether the
properties will be recovered through use or
through sale. The Group has determined
that its investment properties will be
recovered through use, and accordingly the
profits tax rate has been applied to the
calculation of deferred tax.

The adoption of HK(SIC)-Int 21 has had no
material impact to the previously reported

figures of the Group.
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are
in these financial statements.
these HKFRSs are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2006:

not yet effective,

Unless otherwise stated,

HKAS 1 Amendment
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4

Capital Disclosures
Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments
HKFRSs 1 & 6 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Amendments Financial Reporting Standards
and Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease
HKAS 21 Amendment  Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007. The revised standard will affect the
disclosures about qualitative information about the
Group’s objective, policies and processes for
managing capital; quantitative data about what the
Company regards as capital; and compliance with
any capital requirements and the consequences

of any non-compliance.
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 7 incorporates the disclosure requirements
of HKAS 32 relating to financial instruments. This
HKFRS shall be applied for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39
regarding financial guarantee contracts, financial
guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently measured at the higher
of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 and (i) the amount initially recognised,
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that
the adoption of the pronouncements listed above
will not have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements in the period of initial
application.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 24 EHXEBBH I LEME
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)  Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (@) HHREEEEBERZEE

Effect of adopting
BAUT 28 &

HKAS 1# HKAS 17#
EBEERN FBBEGHER
E1%# ERVEE:
At 31 December 2004
Effect of new policies
(Increase/(decrease)) Prepaid
R-ZZENFE+=-A=+—H land lease
payments
FBE2HE Presentation B Total
(%m,/ (&) 275 HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Assets BE
Property, plant and mE-BERHE
equipment (84,971) (54,005) (139,196)
Investment properties wEME 84,971 - 84,971
Prepaid land lease BN T HEERE

payments - 54,225 54,225
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 24 BHERXSBIEEHME (A
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@)  Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (a) HHREEEABRZIFE (HA)
(continued)
Effect of adopting
RAUT 2%
HKASs 32
and 39*
HKAS 14 HKAS 174 BEEHEE
ERgHEL g 5 328
e EAETHs R %308
At 1 January 2005 Change in
Effect of new policies Prepaid land  classification

(Increase/(decrease)) lease of equity
R-ZEZEE-A-H payments  investments Total
il A Presentation Bt BRARE
(gm/ (D)) 23l HERE PERE @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAET FAT FAET FAET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment 1% B E R &% (84,971) (54,225) - (139,196)
Investment properties RENE 84,971 - - 84,971
Prepaid land lease payments B T EHHA - 54,225 - 54,225
Available-for-sale investments ~ AI &R E - - 20,792 20,792
Long term investment RHKE - - (3,477) (3,477)
Investment securities REZES - - (20,240) (20,240)
Securities measured at fair BRTEFNRF
value through profit or loss BB ES - - 12,792 12,792
Short term investments HHKRE - - (12,792) (12,792)
(2,925)
Equity B
Accumulated losses ZEEB - - (2,925) (2,925)
* Adjustments taken effect prospectively * BEHE-TTRF—A—HEM
from 1 January 2005 2
# Presentation taken effect retrospectively # BPET
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B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005

—ZTZERE+T-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 2.4 EBHBXSH2XEHE (8
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (a) HoAEEEBRIEE (F)
(continued)
Effect of adopting
RanTege
HKASs 32 HK(SFC)-
and 39 Int 21
HKAS1 ~ HKAS17 E#E&:EE  HKFRS3  EE(RH
HK-Int 3 Ehedt Bagit 34K BEEERE REZEE)
BE-RBY RHENE  RHEH 39 RBEE -RBENE
Deferred
At 31 December 2005 Revenue- Change in Discontinuation tax on
Effect of new policies Pre- Prepaid land  classification of  revaluation
(Increase/(decrease)) completion lease of equity ~ amortisation of investment
RZZFRETZA=T-A contracts payments investments  of goodwill  properties
HRRzEE W#- Presentaton BNt RARE #i EfRENE Total
(&m/ (8)) RINEH 27 HEXNR 2528 BHEE 2EENE @t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK8'000 HK8'000
TET TET THT T i i i
Assets BE
Properties under development ~ %ES % (158,425) - - - - - (158,425)
Property, plant and equipment 1% HERR & - (66,689) (51,648) - - - (118,337)
Investment properties REN% - 66,689 - - - - 66,689
Prepaid land lease payments BT £t ENE - - 51,648 - - - 51,648
Prepayments, deposits BB &2 R
and other receivables AN (10,925) - - - - - (10,925)
Goodwil HE - - - - 584 - 584
Securities measured at fair OSHEE PN
value through profit or loss BB ES - - - 44,210 - - 44,210
Short term investments RERE - - - (44,210) - - (44,210)
(168,766 )
Liabilities/equity 8f/Rx
Deposits received from customers HAZEF#& & (218,495) - - - - - (218,495)
Other payables EHERR 10,291 - - - - - 10,291
Tax payable EMRA 18,138 - - - - 794 18,082
Retained profits R 20,716 - - - 584 (794) 20,506
(168,766
—ETRHFFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 24 EFHBRXREBIEEME (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)  Effect on the balances of equity at 1 by H-ZZEF-—A—HRAEA&ZHZ

January 2005 -7
HKAS 39
Designation
of available-
for-sale
investments
ERAETHEA
2 3957
Effect of new policy BE
FTHRRz2EE AHERE
HK$’000
FE&T

Increase in accumulated losses RZEZRF-HA—-AZ

at 1 January 2005 RIEEEE M 2,925
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 24 EFHBRXREBIEEME (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Effect on the consolidated income (c) HEBEZ=-—ZETIEF+=-A=+-—H
statement for the year ended 31 LtEEREBERRZEE
December 2005

Effect of adopting
Baege
HK(SIC)-Int 21
HKFRS 3 BE(RH
HK-Int 3 BENE #EZ28)
EE-RES RBENEG -REENE
Revenue- Deferred tax
Effect of new policies Pre-  Discontinuation on revaluation
(Increase/(decrease)) completion of amorisation of investment
of loss for the year contracts of goodwill properties
HHRHE Wi- &It RENFER Total
FREE (N/(HD)) TLAAH Bune ZELHE it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& T T T
Year ended HE-2%1E
31 December 2005 TZRA=ZT-BLER
Revenue /O (207,570) - - (207,570)
Cost of sales BERK 168,716 - - 168,716
Other operating income, net EHEERAEE - (584) - (584)
Tax ikt 18,138 - 794 18,932
187,064
Total increase/(decrease) EREEEN/ (52)
in loss for the year g% (20,716) (584) 794 (20,506 )
Increase/(decrease) in basic BRENER
loss per share #n/ (%) HK(1.33) centsE L HK(0.04) centi& L HK0.05 centi (L HK(1.82) centsiE L
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly
or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group
and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture
entity and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits and losses
from the joint venture’s operations and any
distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the

terms of the joint venture agreement.
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B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint
venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does

but has joint
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint

not have unilateral control,

venture;

(@) an associate, if the Group does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly
or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of
the joint venture’s registered capital and is
in a position to exercise significant influence
over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 39, if the Group
holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20%
of the joint venture’s registered capital and
has neither joint control of, nor is in a
position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over

the economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s interests in its jointly-controlled entities
are accounted for by proportionate consolidation,
which involves recognising its share of the jointly-
controlled entities’ assets, liabilities, income and
expenses with similar items in the consolidated
financial statements on a line-by-line basis.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities (continued)

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included
in the Company’s income statement to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in jointly-controlled entities
are treated as non-current assets and are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary
or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group
has a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in associates are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed as at the date of acquisition.

2.5

TESTHERERE (80

HEZHER (8)

HAREHIEREE DR R R ERR S
)\$ BB IR - AND AR HRF 2 EaE
RS AR B IER EE B - 1R AR T AR (B
EE IR -

BEQT
Bt % B FEM B Ak KR 12 B - K
EI%EEEH}%I&$$ SE—RTIR

20% R A HETHERNTE-

ZK‘E@JEE%“*“Tzuﬁlﬁﬁ{é%ﬁ&f‘%ﬁ
DRt AR AR ER MR AR BN RER
Ban Al e mAKEEIG BEEFER
EREERAEE A AREEE
BEXRA-

B N A2 AT E W R U B AT A
RABER R -ANRA R E R A2 iR

eI BN E B - 3 $2 A AR (B IR (B 1B 51
EE o

G

WENBRARAELE ZHBEREEFAHRAE
BN E R A RER AR EREE L
AR B EERAEABESREBER
WA Z AP FE#G ZZ/-

Annual Report 2005 —ZZ H FF 1R

31



82

2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Gooawill on acquisitions for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially
measured at cost and subsequently at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so
allocated:

° represents the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes; and

o is not larger than a segment based on either
the Group’s primary or the Group’s
secondary reporting format determined in
accordance with HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting”.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in
this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2004

Prior to the adoption of Statement of Standard
Practice 2.130 “Business
(“SSAP 307) in 2001,
arising on acquisition was eliminated against the

Accounting

Combinations” goodwill
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. In
2001, on adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied
the transitional provision of SSAP 30 that permitted
such goodwill to remain eliminated against
consolidated
acquisition on or after 1 January 2001 was

reserves. Goodwill arising on
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 10 years. On the adoption
of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated
against the consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in the income statement when all or
part of the business to which the goodwill relates
is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case, the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, however not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the
Group;
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FESHHBEHME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued) BEEAL (#)

(b)  the party is an associate; (b) REEAL

(c)  the party is a jointly-controlled entity; (c) BFE R E

(d) the party is a member of the key (d) REAEEEXEZEEAS:
management personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of (e) B ()BT E M A £ 25
any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

i) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly ) 55 E B ok BB B (d)sk (e) T AT L 1E
controlled or significantly influenced by or Al AN BRE 2B BB Hl) - R 5% s
for which significant voting power in such REAFERTERERERZE
entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any B3k
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9  the party is a post-employment benefit plan (9) REAEEESNBEAEEEBEA
for the benefit of the employees of the TZEMEBZRBANARERKR

Group, or of any entity that is a related party FETEl
of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 15%
10% or
remaining lease term,

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements over the
whichever is shorter
6% to 25%

10% to 33"/5%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures
and office equipment

Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
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31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among

the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects

market conditions at the balance sheet date.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in the

income statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognised in the
income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost
which includes all development expenditure,
interest charges and other costs directly

attributable to such properties.

Properties under development with pre-completion
contracts for sale of those properties entered into
on or before 31 December 2004 are stated at
cost plus attributable profits less any foreseeable

losses, and deposits and installments received.

with
pre-completion contracts for sale of those

For properties under development
properties entered into on or before 31 December
2004, the total estimated profit is apportioned over
the entire period of construction to reflect the
progress of the development. On this basis, profit
recognised on the pre-sold portion of the
properties is calculated by reference to the
proportion of construction costs incurred up to
the balance sheet date, to the estimated total
construction costs to completion, but is limited to
the  amount of sales deposits and instalments

received and with due allowance for contingencies.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development (continued)

Properties under development which have either
been pre-sold or which are intended for sale, and
are expected to be completed within one year from
the balance sheet date, are classified as current
assets.

Properties for sale

Properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2004

Investment securities

Investment securities represent investments in
listed equity securities intended to be held for a
continuing strategic and long term purpose, and
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on
an individual investment basis.

When a decline in the fair value of a security below
its carrying amount has occurred, unless there is
evidence that the decline is temporary, the carrying
amount of the security is reduced to its fair value,
as estimated by the directors. The amount of the
impairment is charged to the income statement in
When the
circumstances and events which led to the

the period in which it arises.
impairment in value cease to exist and there is
persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future,
the amount of the impairment previously charged
is credited to the income statement to the extent

of the amount previously charged.

Long term investment

Long term investment represents the Group’s
interest in its former subsidiary in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) which is intended to be
held on a long term basis. It is stated at the
Group’s share of its net assets value at the time
of its transfer to the long term investment, less

any impairment losses.

2.5

TESHBRBE ()

RENKHEMMERMEE
BRARBEZ-_FENFt+-A=t+—A1L
FE

KEEF

REBFEHABSERBRAKEZ L™
BARBFRE TDIRER R EEE AR
B AT A7) R0 {2 A5 48 71 B

HWES A HERZEREEREE RIEAR
BRERZASBEREL TAZESFZ
REEE NRAZEEFEMAEAZAFERE
BENEEPNE AR RRG EHREH
BEL LFEZBRREF BRAGRA
ERB T ERLRE AR AELR TS E
A 2 AN ER 2R B BURR 1R F A AT HNRR BUAR
AFABER

RHEKRE

EHREBAISENEMRFPEARKM
B([hE]) A E A AR RIS EZ#
@ DRASEESEBRERPKREZK DGR
EEFERITABEBR? R

Annual Report 2005 —ZZ H FF 1R

91



92

2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2004
(continued)

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity
securities held for trading purposes and are stated
at their fair values on the basis of their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date, on an
individual investment basis. The gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of a security
are credited or charged to the income statement

in the period in which they arise.

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as either securities measured at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005
(continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Securities measured at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are
included in the category “securities measured at
fair value through profit or loss”. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are
recognised in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well

as through the amortisation process.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted securities that
are designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any of the other two categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
recognised as a separate component of equity until
the investment is derecognised or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is included in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within
the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005

(continued)
Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices at the
close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair
value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 December 2005)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If it is determined
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of

impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement, to the extent
that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on an unqguoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot
be reliably measured has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these

assets are not reversed.
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is
transferred from equity to the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through the
income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 December 2005)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the
transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the
transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including
a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an
asset measured at fair value, where the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to
the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset

and the option exercise price.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at
the fair value of the consideration received less

directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as

well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable
to the year ended 31 December 2005)

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable
to the year ended 31 December 2005)

(continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including time deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in the income statement.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the income statement,
or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised
in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures,
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date
and are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
values where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the period necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is
intended to compensate. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income
statement over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TEEHHEME (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition W AR

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that

the economic benefits will flow to the Group and

when the revenue can be measured reliably, on

the following bases:

(a)

income from the pre-sale of properties
under development, on the exchange of
legally binding sale contracts, provided that
the construction work has progressed to a
stage where the ultimate realisation of profit
can be reasonably determined, and on the
basis set out in “Properties under

development” above;

income from the sale of goods, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

rental income, on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’
right to
established.

receive payment has been
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the
balance sheet date is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the
balance sheet date for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Annual Report 2005 —ZZ F FF 1R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TESHBRRBE (80

BEEA

BHERAEE

AEERBEBAVNREBEABFAERSE
RTEFEFR-EETERT BRBFHF
RAEE SEREART —EFEZFM &
B LRINGEE BINAZ B -BHE B NF
NAIZANEHFBIERGEERIZBREMNX
X REERREE



2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) for
certain of its employees, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme.
When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior
to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group can be reduced
by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China of the PRC (“Mainland
China”) are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of the payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs capitalised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the
date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date and, their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
and jointly-controlled entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and jointly-
controlled entities which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating
leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

The carrying amount of goodwill of the Group at 1
January 2005 of HK$4,816,000 was fully impaired
during the year, further details of which are set
out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision against slow-moving inventories

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made
based on the aging and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the
provision amount required involves management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such differences will have
impact on the carrying value of the inventories and
provision charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of the property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable in accordance with
the accounting policies as disclosed in note
2.5 to the financial statements. The recoverable
amount of items of property, plant and equipment
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use, the calculation of which involves the

use of estimates.
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31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment
reporting basis, by business segment; and (ii) on
a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured
and managed separately according to the nature
of their operations and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of
the business segments are as follows:

(@) property development;

(b) manufacture and distribution of watches and

timepieces;

(c) manufacture and distribution of timber
products (the “Timber Business”);

(d) manufacture and distribution of enamelled

copper wires;
(e) property investment; and

(f) corporate and others segment, comprising
corporate income and expense items and

other businesses.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location
of the assets.
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

4.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEEHR ()
(a) Business segments (a) EX 3]
The following tables present revenue, profit/ TREVNAEBHEZ-_ZEZTAFR
(loss) and certain asset, liability and —EENF+ A=+ —HLEFE
expenditure information for the Group's REBIEZRAHF (EE)
business segments for the years ended 31 FEaETEE ABLRAXER-

December 2005 and 2004.

Group
15E
Property Watches and Timber Enamelled Property Corporate
development timepieces products copper wires investment and others Consolidated
NEER EEREITER KAHER REHK NERE DEREL &4

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
CRRF CSEME CRRNE CEEME CRRNE CREME CSRNF CRIMF %1 CBEMF 2RI CREMF C2%1f CREQF
HK8'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr TEn  TEr TErT  TEr  TEr TEr  TEr TEr TEr TEr  TEr  TER

Segment revenue: AR
Sales to extemal WHREP

customers #E 299339 217920 122,884 104538 174,010 194,119 18,332 - 6,144 5212 - 2013 620,709 523,802
QOther revenue EfRA 2,605 30 836 497 3,682 6,844 1,178 - - - 1,142 556 9,99 7,921
Total @t 301,944 217950 128719 105,035 177,642 200963 20,110 - 6,144 5212 1,142 2569 630,701 531,729
Segment results ABEE 15,883 32,187 18940 9962  (37,578) (27,137) (612) - 5080 19,662  (21,124) 3058  (19431) 37,732
Finance costs BBER (2699)  (10382)
Profit/oss) before tax B BHATI H/ (%58 (2130) 27,350
Tax it (1,581)  (15,983)
Profitloss) for the year ~ F M/ (%) @371) 1417
Segment assets PREE 947,452 402,070 106,312 73238 284,814 291582 48,119 - 49997 86,347 109,562 284,310 1,546,256 1,137,547
Segment liabilities HEER 537813 194256 28,102 27,852 64,106 39,444 1,581 - 7317 15221 427492 359,760 1,006,361 636,533

Other segment information: £ 173 & :

Depreciation and BRI EERE

amortisation of prepaid EREH

land lease payment 754 234 2,539 2740 16301 19,046 1,553 - - - 720 1,929 21867 23,950
Amortisation of goodwill ~ FHEEH - - - - - 584 - - - - - - - 584
Impairment of goodwill HERE - - - - 4,816 - - - - - - - 4816 -
Changes in fair value of ~ RENEATFEEY

investment properties - - - - - - - - (3,378)  (17,224) - - (3,378) (17,224)
Reversal of impairment of 1%+ & R i%fs

items of property, AREER

plant and equipment - - - - - - - - - - - [21,671) - (21,671)
Provision against inventories 7 & & /& - - - 328 3775 8780 - - - - - - 3T 12048
Impairment of AHERERME

available-for-sale

investments - - - - - - - - - - 3477 - 3477 -
Capital expenditure EXfx 7,044 2,21 570 1,199 393 4002 35,547 - 57 - 10 2414 68871 9,836
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31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

4.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEEHR (H)
(b)  Geographical segments (b) HESE
The following table presents revenue and THREIWAEBEHZE-_ZETHER
certain asset and expenditure information —ETENFE+_RA=1T—HLFE
for the Group’s geographical segments for @SB oW ARE T & EEA
the years ended 31 December 2005 and S AR
2004.
Group
rEH
Hong Kong Mainland China Consolidated
BB RE KR 28

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“22IF -PPNF -TRIF -TEMF -TEIF -FEAF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TFErT  TEr  FAT  TET  FEX

Segment revenue: kLN
Sales to external Mo RE P
customers HE 33,785 45,411 586,924 478,391 620,709 523,802

Other segment information: H % 84 &}

Segment assets NHEE 84,359 198,406 1,461,897 939,141 1,546,256 1,137,547
Capital expenditure EARRY 110 2,415 68,761 7,421 68,871 9,836
5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. g A B2 H Ut A
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, W ATRENAN EE[E SR JHIEMBRE RN E
mainly represents the net invoiced value of goods SHNZEHE REEZTERE-HEXRTY
sold, after allowances for returns and trade EMBWARES> AR W R EKTES
discounts, an appropriate proportion of revenue NG

from the sale of properties under development and
rental income received and receivable.
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 5.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WAEEMKA (8

WA R EARAZ DT

follows:
Group
AEHE
2005 2004
—EERF —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETL FAEIT
Revenue WA
Sale of goods BEmigE 315,226 298,657
Sale of properties under development ZEE 4 HE 299,339 217,920
Gross rental income el ABss 6,144 5,212
Interest income F 2 WA - 2,013
620,709 523,802
Other income H il A
Interest income g U A 4,397 -
Dividend income from EHERERB A
listed investments 238 537
PRC valued-added tax refund 3R (0] A B 4 E R 3,030 5,384
Others i 2,327 2,006
9,992 7,927
630,701 531,729
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

6.  PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRBAREF A (FHE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at AEBEZHRBATGER, (BE) BENKRS
after charging/(crediting): (Bt A) NAI&I1E:
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff & FAET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Cost of inventories sold** EHFERAR 537,975 426,332
Depreciation e 13 18,282 20,865
Amortisation of prepaid land ER A E
lease payments XA #8E 15 3,585 3,085
Goodwill: EkE 16
Amortisation for the year* FREEHE - 584
Impairment arising during the year* FREERE" 4,816 -
4,816 584
Minimum lease payments under T REFLEEED
operating leases in respect of BT &R ORIE
land and buildings 4,723 4,853
Auditors’ remuneration % B B & 1,480 1,350
Employee benefits expenses 1B B8 F X
(excluding directors’ remuneration (TEEEEWe
(note 8)) (Hf78))
Wages and salaries T & K H 40,641 43,596
Pension schemes contributions B e FHEIH R 2,431 2539
Less: Forfeited contributions g HRGR B (18) (61)
Net pension schemes contributions RARSFHEIEFTFE 2,413 2,478
Total staff costs HMETRA 43,054 46,074
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

6.  PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBIAEF (HE) (8
2005 2004
—EZREF —EEME
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it & FET FHE T
(Restated)
(E73))
Gross rental income e WAL 6,144 5,212
Less: Direct operating expenses i RIS E
(including repairs and WEFTEE
maintenance) arising on L EERE
rental-earning investment AX BE
properties HERIRE (2,342) (1,450)
Net rental income e A FE 3,802 3,762
Fair value changes on securities BN AR A% sk
measured at fair value through B ES RSB
profit or loss/short term "EZRY¥E
investments, net* BE)FRE" 2,696 (1,699)
Gain on disposal of securities HERAFERTART
measured at fair value HEBZESE B
through profit or loss/short term wE W= FEE
investments, net* (2,367) (515)
Gain on disposal of HENHEREZ
available-for-sale investments* W as~ (13,145) -
Gain on disposal/write-off of items of & /His4 ¥ % - WE
property, plant and equipment, net* PET R e (1,429) (1,285)
Changes in fair value of investment WEMELNFELE"
properties® 14 (3,378) (17,224)
Reversal of impairment of items of W WENRFZEIEE
property, plant and equipment* PERER:CI 13 - (21,671)
Impairment of available-for-sale AHERERE"
investments™ 20 3,477 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary* HE—KMBAA 38 - (59)
&
Gain on disposal of an associate* HE—KEE QR 2 s (3,769) -
Provision for inventories** FERE" 3,775 12,048
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

6.  PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBARF S (FE) (&)

* These amounts are included in “Other operating . UWEHBE G A G Bm R s
income, net” on the face of the consolidated WA FEEE] A
income statement.

** Cost of inventories sold includes HK$42,318,000 b EHGFEXACIFHEE TR AN E &
(2004: HK$45,414,000) relating to staff costs, 1+ 4t 70 B 70 T 4 5 - 77 B 9% 4 B i
depreciation, amortisation of prepaid land lease REFHEEHLGE T ZIEHLINTEEH
payments, provision for inventories and minimum 242,318,000 &x (= £ F /M #F :
lease payments under operating leases in respect 45,414,000 L) * FX B Btiz EF5 58
of land and buildings, which is also included in Bl R EEE AT
the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above for these types of expenses.

7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. BHBER
Group
RE
2005 2004
—EEEF —EEMEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FE&T
Interests on bank and other loans ARAFANBHEN BT
wholly repayable within five years RHEHAME T L 23,053 27,795
Less: Interest capitalised VA= N PN (20,354) (17,413)
2,699 10,382
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

8.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. ES=M=2
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed FRNEEMERETBBARZMABERA
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of AESE EmARA ([ LKA REE AT
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong EAIE161EBE BT

Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

(a) Non-executive director and independent (a) kB TESELBIHATES
non-executive directors

The fees paid to non-executive and FRENIFRITEERBILIFNTT
independent non-executive directors during EF 20T

the year were as follows:

2005 2004
—EERHF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FE&T
Non-executive director: FEHITES:
Ms. Sit Lai Hei BRI A+ 100 13
Independent non-executive BAIERTES:
directors:
Mr. Fung Tze Wah BFELE 100 66
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael — EB{E{E 1 £ 100 66
Mr. Li Qiang Foak A 100 13
Mr. Werner Max Michael BEaEiEr
Maksowski* - -
Mr. Yang Zheng Qing* BIEB S E” - -
300 145
400 158
* Resigned during 2004. * RZEZFRNEFE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EExMe (&)

(a) Non-executive director and independent (@) HFTEERBILUHFHTES(E)
non-executive directors (continued)

There was no other emoluments payable to FALEENIENTEST LB IIE
the non-executive director and independent HWITEE 2 HEMEE -

non-executive directors during the year.

(b)  Executive directors (b) #|ITES
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Pension
in kind scheme Total

Fees # €28y contributions remuneration
e REYEFR BRGrEMR ke -k
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FEL FET FEL FET

2005 —ZTRF

Executive directors: HrESE:

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung BEELE - 1,690 12 1,702
Mr. Wang Shaolan ITOEEE - 1,581 11 1,592
Mr. Shang Jianguang mEKEE - 1,721 72 1,793
Mr. Shi Tao AERAE - 2,044 - 2,044
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR EE - 1,430 12 1,442
- 8,466 107 8,573
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. BEExMe (&)
(b)  Executive directors (continued) (b) HITEE(HE)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Pension
in kind scheme Total
Fees # & #8 contributions remuneration
e REVEN BRFEMHN MeBE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000

FETL FHEL FEL FETL
2004 —EETNF
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung BEEEE AL - 1,127 8 1,135
Mr. Wang Shaolan ITOEEE - 1,652 - 1,652
Mr. Shang Jianguang EENEE - 205 - 205
Mr. Shi Tao RBLE - 1,386 - 1,386
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR £ - 715 6 721
Mr. Wang Mingquan THESE - - - -
Mr. Zang Qiutao B EE - 385 - 385
- 5,470 14 5,484
There was no arrangement under which a FARAVEBESRPXRERPEM
director waived or agreed to waive any W4~ ZHE-
remuneration during the year.
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EEEESHFMAL
The five highest paid employees during the year FRNRALESHMALTH ERREL (=
included five (2004: four) directors, details of whose TNE L) AES HE2ME DR £
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. The Yt E- RE-_ETNFE+ - /B =1+
remuneration of the remaining one non-director, —HItFEE H— 25 g A+
highest paid employee for the year ended 31 2 B4 A 785,000/ 7T /Y FE E1,000,000
December 2004 was HK$785,000 and fell within T EE

the band of Nil to HK$1,000,000.
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

TAX 10. HIE
For the year ended 31 December 2005, Hong Kong REBEZE_ZZTAF+_A=1T—HIEFE"
profits tax for the Group has been provided at the AEBRFAREBELE Z AT ERE R
rate of 17.5% on the estimated assessable profits FIZTEAT SWBIEL B BRI G REE (2T
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2004: TUOF 17.5%) o B BIRK 322 M@ 2 5178
17.5%). The subsidiaries established in the PRC T15%Z 33% 2 Tt R BN FT 1S T ©
are subject to income taxes at tax rates ranging
from 15% to 33%.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been REMME 2 R GARIB L ANEER
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the tax BEEB ZHEaERER ZIRITRERE
jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based B BITEN REREMNFE-
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.
Group
rEEH
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHE T
Current tax charge for the year: FRRNEARIE S -
Hong Kong B 303 34
Elsewhere H h i [@ 20,510 15,797
Underprovision/(overprovision) of BAFE B AR T B
current tax in respect of prior years TR/ (BEEREE) (26) 102
Deferred tax charge (note 32) BIER AR X (A aE32) 794 -
Total tax charge for the year FARARBR B 21,581 15,933
Annual Report 2005 —ZZ H FF 1R
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates

applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries

10. FIE (&)

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective N

tax rates is as follows:

BARBRENB QR AENER ZETE
BEGFE BB NG R, (B18) B 2B
AN ER BR PR GTE 2B IR hE AR

Group
E
2005 2004
—EZRF —ZEEMEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHE T
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATREF S (BE) (22,130) 27,350
Tax at the applicable rates to EEABE e AR
profit/(loss) in the tax jurisdictions (BR) RERANEE
concerned 2 WA 968 15,249
Lower tax rate for specific provinces 5T & 10 2 &K X 2,944 (2,239)
Income not subject to tax BAERH WA (3,653) (11,563)
Expenses not deductible for tax CIE b d k1 4,766 1,601
Adjustments in respect of current tax i@ £ HA R BN EA 7 0B 2
of previous periods P (26) 102
Other temporary differences EMABRERFES
not recognised 587 -
Tax losses utilised from previous BABMATARESE
periods (112) -
Tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE 16,107 12,783
Tax charge at the Group’s NAEBERBRAEZ
effective rate MIBF 21,581 15,933
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11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2005 dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company, was HK$48,708,000
(2004: HK$19,810,000) (note 36(b)).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
is based on the net loss for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company, of
HK$43,275,000 (2004: net profit of
HK$11,373,000), and the 1,544,831,000 (2004:
1,544,831,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts for the
years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 have
not been disclosed as no diluting events existed
during these years.

11.

12.

AAFEBRFEARGE-—REBZER
F

HE-_ZTRF+_AZ+—BHLEEFEE XK
NAEEFEABE—REBBBEISE
438,708,000/ 7t (ZZZ U4 : 19,810,000
BIL)ERARQRA P B R R AR
(Ff 7£36(b)) °

AARERRERAARBLEERE
A, (E8)

BREXREF, (B1B) DIREBEARQ AL B
s B A JEL F A E 18 )F 58 43,275,000
B (ZZ T 455 11,373,000/ 7T )
MFANE 817 %1,544,831,0000% (=&
T P4 1 1,544,831,0008% ) 5t & -

HREE _TTERFR_TTNFE+ A
—t+—HItFEYE RS RS RrE
WBRZEFE 2 SREEEF (FHE) &
Ho
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %% %R & MY 3

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

13.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME-BERRE
Group KEH
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office
Land and improvements Plant and equipment Motor ~ Construction
buildings BENE  machinery K& EER vehicles in progress Total
THRET ¢  HBEREE HOZRG RE ERIR B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERL TR TERL TEL TEL TET

31 December 2005 ZEEnE
+ZB=t+-H
At 31 December 2004 and RZZERE
at 1 January 2005; +ZA=+-Hk
ZEERE-A-B:
Cost KA 166,764 5,492 84,329 28,376 14,431 - 299,392
Accumulated depreciation ZRNERGE
and impairment (35,337) (1,752) (18564) (9,209) (4,720) . (69,582)
Net carrying amount REEE 131,427 3,740 65,765 19,167 9,711 - 229,810
Additions NE 5,183 510 36,240 947 784 - 43,664
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHELA
(note 37) (H37) - - - 88 1,154 - 1,242
Disposals e (46,078) - (320) 67) #12) - (¢6,677)
Depreciation provided FRNERE
during the year (4,135) (1,125) (8675) (3,018) (1,329) . (18.282)
Exchange realignment ERHE 1,835 41 1,595 362 197 - 4,030
At 31 December 2005, i
net of accumulated +ZA=zt+-8
depreciation and NREENE
impairment RpE 88,232 3,166 94,605 17,479 10,105 - 213,587
At 31 December 2005: RZZERE
TZR=1-H:
Cost Ak 102,438 5578 118264 29,643 12,870 - 268793
Accumulated depreciation ZRMERNE
and impairment (14,206) (2,412) (3659) (12,164 (2,765) - (55,206
Net carrying amount REFE 88,232 3,166 94,605 17,479 10,105 - 213,587
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERXE (#)
(continued)

Group rE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office
Land and improvements Plant and equipment Motor ~ Construction
buildings BENE  machinery K& EER vehicles  in progress Total
THREF B BEREE  HOERE RE ERIR BE

HK$:000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TH#x TR TR TR TR TR

(Restated)
(E3)
31 December 2004 —EEME
+=ZH=+-H
At 1 January 2004: RZEEME-A-A
Cost A 172,218 4,238 87,587 29,322 15,376 288 309,029
Accumulated depreciation ZRMER
and impairment A (55,881 (1518) (10,436) (7,915) (4,839) - (80,589)
Net carrying amount FRFE 116,337 2,720 77,151 21,407 10,537 288 228,440
Additions "E - 1,868 3,808 1,692 2,444 29 9,836
Disposals/write-off e/ (958) (16) (560) (147) (814) (317) (2,812)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAT
(note 38) (Hfz£38) (17) - (5,607) (130) (926) - (6,680)
Impairment reversed ENEEERR
to income statement LR
during the year 21,671 - - - - - 21,671
Depreciation provided FRNERE
during the year (5,732) (833) (9,088) (3673) (1,639) . (20,865)
Exchange realignment ERAE 126 1 66 18 9 - 220
At 31 December 2004, RZZEWE
net of accumulated TZA=1+-8
depreciation and NRZENE
impairment RpE 131,427 3,740 65,765 19,167 9,711 - 229,810
At 31 December 2004: RZEENE
TZA=1t-8:
Cost R 166,764 5,492 84,329 28,376 14,431 - 299,392
Accumulated depreciation ZRMERNE
and impairment (35,337) (1752) (18,564 (9,209) (4,720) - (69,582)
Net carrying amount KHFE 131,427 3,740 65,765 19,167 9,711 - 229,810
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -BERXE (#H)

(continued)
Company VNN

Furniture,
fixtures and

Leasehold office
improvements  equipment Motor
HE KE-KER vehicles Total
MEERE BLERE AE #E

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FRT G FRT FRAT

31 December 2005 —EERFE

At 31 December 2004 R_EZME+-A

and at 1 January =t+—BRER-_ZETHHF
2005: —A—8:
Cost B AR 1,767 819 713 3,299
Accumulated 2RERE
depreciation (171) (167) (515) (853)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,596 652 198 2,446
Additions NE - 111 - 111
Disposals HE - (16) - (16)
Depreciation provided FAMERE
during the year (354) (158) (60) (572)
At 31 December 2005, RZEZRF
net of accumulated +-A=+—8
depreciation Kk ZENE 1,242 589 138 1,969
At 31 December 2005: RZZEZERF
+-—RA=+—8:
Cost AR 1,767 880 713 3,360
Accumulated 2EME
depreciation (525) (291) (575) (1,391)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,242 589 138 1,969
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31 December 2005

13. PROPERTY,

(continued)

Company

—ZTZERFE+T-A=+—H

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

13. ME-BRERSKE (8

ZNVNS|

Furniture,
fixtures and

Leasehold office
improvements  equipment Motor
HE RE-EEBER vehicles Total
MEHEE BAERE AE wE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
31 December 2004 —EENF
+=-A=+-H
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZENF—-HF—H
Cost DN 626 2,506 907 4,039
Accumulated 2REITE
depreciation (583) (2,395) (524) (3,502)
Net carrying amount REFE 43 111 383 537
Additions NE 1,757 659 - 2,416
Disposals k= (16) (33) (26) (75)
Depreciation provided FAMERE
during the year (188) (85) (159) (432)
At 31 December 2004, MZETNE
net of accumulated +=-—RA=+—H
depreciation MBRRBHE 1,596 652 198 2,446
At 31 December 2004: RZEZNF
+-F=+—8:
Cost B AR 1,767 819 713 3,299
Accumulated 2RERE
depreciation (171) (167) (515) (853)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,596 652 198 2,446
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13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

PROPERTY,

(continued)

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s buildings included above are situated
in the Mainland China and are held under the

following lease terms:

13. MR -BERZRHE (8

EXBREZAREE TN FEARE I
BTSIEBRER:

HK$’000
FAEIT

At cost: X ZN{E
Short term leases g HRAE 4 2,536
Medium term leases FHAFE 4 99,902

During the year, the Group disposed of certain of
its leasehold properties and investment properties
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$93 million for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$93 million.

At 31 December 2005, certain of the Group’s
buildings with a carrying value of HK$95,053,000
(2004: HK$80,689,000), situated in Mainland China
were pledged to secure certain banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 30).

At 31 December 2005, the Group has not yet
obtained the title certificates for certain of its
buildings situated in Shenzhen and in Beijing, the
PRC with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$24,652,000 (2004:
HK$19,488,000). As confirmed by the Group’s
legal advisors and the Company’s directors, the
Group has legally obtained the right to use the
buildings and can obtain the relevant title
certificates through making applications to the
relevant government authorities.

Annual Report 2005 —ZZ F FF 1R

102,438

FR AEEHEEHETEEEAEY
93,000,000/ T2 HEME RIKEWME 31
% KRB # /A93,000,0005 It °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BREWHE
2005 2004
—EEHF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 84,971 67,747
Additions NE 25,207 -
Disposals s (47,200) -
Net profit from fair value adjustments 2 F{&E FAE ~ 40 7 3,378 17,224
Exchange alignment PE 5, 58 & 333 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HA2KEA 66,689 84,971

The Group’s investment properties included above
are situated in Mainland China and are held under
medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2005 by Chung, Chan &
Associates (“CCA”) and Greater China Appraisal
Limited,
valuers, at HK$66,890,000 in aggregate on an

independent professionally qualified

open market, existing use basis. A revaluation
surplus of HK$3,378,000 resulting from the above
revaluation has been credited to the income
statement (note 6). Certain of the Group’s
investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 40(a) to the financial

statements.

At 31 December 2005, the Group had certain
investment properties located in Dongguan,
Guangdong Province of the PRC and in Beijing,
the PRC with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$51,113,000 (2004: HK$22,600,000). The
Group has not yet obtained the relevant title
certificates for these properties. As confirmed by
the Group’s legal advisors and the Company’s
directors, the Group is the rightful and equitable
owner of these properties.

EXFEAR R 2R E Y E A R EA R
NP HIHERA -

AEBZREMER _ZEZERF+_A=

T-RHBLEXRAGEMEGET ([#
BT RMEEFEARAAEARTER

RT3 A% E (h 4858 /566,890,000 JT°
A bl & E &£ 2 8,378,000 T & 14 B &

ErtABZE (iEe) - AEBEE TIREY
XOREEROWEETEZRE=F E—F
BER SR B 7 & M52 40(a) ©

RZZEERFT_A=1+—8 ~EERH
BEEREREMEAETIREDE R
B4 #£51,113,0008 70 (ZZT T 0 F :
22,600,000/ 7T) A& E{N ARG ZEY
EHRBAXETRH-AER ERBRR A
NREEFEHR NEBRZEMEZEE
MEEEENBEB A

Annual Report 2005 —ZZ H FF 1R

131



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYE (#)
Further details of the Group’s investment properties REEBREMHEZE—FFBHIRNFRSE
are included on page 177 of the annual report. 1778 °
At 31 December 2005, certain of the Group’s RZZETRAF+_A=1+—H X£BEE
investment properties with a value of 27,613,000 0 (ZZEZTWNF: &) 2 &5 T
HK$27,613,000 (2004: Nil) were pledged to secure REMEDER UAAESERSFSRITHE
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30). (KF3E30)
15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. BN L HEERE
Group
AKEH
2005 2004
—EZERF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FEIT
(Restated)
(E7%)
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE
As previously reported JC Bl 2 7R - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 RANEBEBGAERIEITH
(note 2.4(a)) 2B (Kit2.4(a) 54,225 57,310
As restated B3l 54,225 57,310
Amortisation recognised FANERESE (H36)
during the year (note 6) (3,585) (3,085)
Exchange realignment bE X 3 & 1,008 -
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+—A=+—HZKEHE 51,648 54,225
Current portion BN AR &6 & (3,619) (3,546)
Non-current portion SERNEREE o 48,029 50,679
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 15. FEMN L #HBEEHIE (&)

At 31 December 2005, certain of the Group’s RIZEZERAF+A=+—H8 ZTEERF
prepaid land lease payments with carrying value Bl K BE P+ A BRI 18 546,382,000 7T (=
of HK$46,382,000 (2004: HK$48,771,000), TTPUF :48,771,0008 L) 2 BT B £
situated in Mainland China were pledged to secure HWHERBEEER UAREBEREETIE
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note TR E (H5E30) ©

30).

The Group’s leasehold land included above are B EZ AN B E 4 i pR B fE
situated in Mainland China and are held under the TR THHEBEE:

following lease terms:

HK$’000
FAEIT

At cost: AN E
Short term leases 52 HRAE 4 46,382
Medium term leases FRERFR 4y 5,266
51,648
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

16. GOODWILL

The movements of the goodwill capitalised as an

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. B8

AEEETHEAREL CHEZH DR

asset in the consolidated balance sheet, arising FTERN NEEEERBERIWEEENT:
from the acquisition of certain subsidiaries, are as
follows:
Group
REE
HK$’000
FAEIT
31 December 2005 —EEHEF+-HA=+—H
At 1 January 2005 —ETERF—-HA—H
Cost: A
As previously reported SRl 2 7R 5,838
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 MBSV BRBREREIR X E
(note 2.2 (d)) (K1aE2.2(d)) (1,022)
As restated E75 4,816
Accumulated amortisation and REEENBE:
impairment:
As previously reported Jo Bl 2 7R 1,022
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 RMNEAVBRBREAEISR2TE
(note 2.2 (d)) (K7 aE2.2(d)) (1,022)
As restated ERdl -
Net carrying amount REFE 4,816
Impairment during the year FRRE (4,816)
Carrying amount at 31 RZEZERAF+_A=1+T—AZKEEAE
December 2005 -
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZEZERF+-_A=+—8
Cost B AR 4,816
Accumulated impairment RIERE (4,816)
Net carrying amount RAEFE -
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B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. & (#)
Group
HK$000
FET
31 December 2004 —EENE+=A=+—H
At 1 January 2004: RZZEETWMFE—A—H:
Cost B AR 5,838
Accumulated amortisation R (438)
Net carrying amount R FAE 5,400
Amortisation provided during FREHEE
the year (584)
Cost and carrying amount at R-ZBEZEME+_A=+—H2
31 December 2004 AR ERHEE: 4,816
At 31 December 2004: R-TEZENF+_-_A=+—8H:
Cost B AR 5,838
Accumulated amortisation R (1,022)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,816
In 2004, goodwill not previously eliminated against N ZZEEFE LR AR GEE EE NS
the consolidated reserves was amortised on the BETTNEAOE ZGt0EHEHILER
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of EE Y o
10 years.
As further detailed in note 2.2(d) to the financial RIBEFEBRRM 2.2 T REED
statements, the Group applied the transitional TEREAMBEBEREREIIFEEE 7
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in TR B -—FHAETEREH Z2HE
respect of business combinations which occurred TRGEE HEEEHE-

prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against the

consolidated reserves.
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17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

GOODWILL (continued) 16. MEE (#)
The amount of goodwill remaining in the RZZEZERFEFT_A=1T—HBINREEH
consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition AR zEE22E (R -FKMNE
of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 5T % % Bl 55305k B UK BE BT B A Bl AT E
2001, was HK$15,300,000 (2004: HK$15,300,000) 4 ) 715,300,000 T (Z T T W F:
as at 31 December 2005. 15,300,000/ 7T ) °
Due to the consecutive losses incurred by the HARARAMERIFEELIBEE MESTE
Timber Business in recent years and the directors HAMEBERELREBE WEER A
expected that further losses will be incurred by AMEBR -_EERAF—A—HEMLZA
the Timber Business, the directors considered that ZREE4,816,0007% 72 2EURME < F 1t
the carrying amount of goodwill attributable to the 2R (E4,816,0008 TE R AFELRE B
Timber Business of HK$4,816,000 at 1 January 7k FOBR ©
2005 was fully impaired. Accordingly, an
impairment of goodwill of HK$4,816,000 was
charged to the consolidated income statement of
the current year.
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. FiEMEB LR R#ER
Company
P NN
2005 2004
—EEHF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FE&T
Unlisted investments, at cost LMD KAE 128,174 128,174
Due from subsidiaries FEW M B 2~ A R 473,300 577,090
601,474 705,264
Provision for impairment B (303,703) (285,413)
297,771 419,851

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and are not expected to be repaid
within the next 12 months. The carrying amounts
of the amounts due from subsidiaries approximate
to their fair values.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005

—ZTZERFE+T-A=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

17. FEMEBARER (8)

TEMBRARFBEOT:

follows:
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of of equity
registration issued ordinary/ attributable
and operations paid-up capital to the Company
Name HEmAL BRTLE/ AT ES Principal activities
8 ERUNE-F 3.1 BERAEE BRAF D TEXH
Direct  Indirect
BE# &
Qingapen Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2 100 - Property investment
BRAERAA Mainland China 2B T MERE
BB/ REKE
China Haidian Hong Kong/ HK$2 100 - Property investment
Commercial Network Mainland China 28T MERE
Services Limited B/ HEAE
Haidian-Creation British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
International Limited Hong Kong e REER
EBRAHE /B
Sure Best Management Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Property investment
Limited it 1B MERE
EBOHR Luxuries PRC/ HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
International Mainland China# 30,000,000 7T of watches and
Co., Limited* R KR timepieces
(“Ebohr’) RERHEERR
opREm ORI BR AR B 5T m

(MK Bl )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005

—ZTZERE+T-A=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

FRAS BB A AR & (80

TEMBARFBHOT:

follows:
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of of equity
registration issued ordinary/ attributable
and operations paid-up capital to the Company
Name HEmAL BRTLE/ AT ES Principal activities
8 ERUNE-F 3.1 BERAEE BRAF D TEXH
Direct  Indirect
BE# &
Seti Timber Industry PRC/ US$45,525,860 - 100 Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* Mainland Chinaf# 45,525,860 7T of timber products
RERERI) BRRE RE /B KRES HERHEAMER
Beijing Jing Guan PRC/ RMB80,000,000 - 100  Property development
Property Development Mainland China# A R % 80,000,0007T MEERE
Company Limited* B B K P #
IR R E i E R R
BR A"
Beijing Xin Yang PRC/ RMB26,000,000 - 80  Property development

Property Development

Mainland China## A K% 26,000,0007C

Company Limited BB K4
(“Xin Yang”)*
# Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
in the PRC
## Registered as a foreign investment enterprise in
the PRC
* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or

other Ernst & Young International member firms.

—ETRFFH

##
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

The Group holds a 51% equity interest in Shunde
Everbright Sunto Computer Co. Ltd. (“Sunto”), a
company established in the PRC through which
the Group had intended to participate in the
manufacture and sale of computer casing products
with third parties. Due to the non-disclosure of
certain material transactions by the subsidiary’s
management and its minority shareholder, the
Group had reasonable doubt as to the reliability of
the financial information provided by the subsidiary.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the subsidiary is practically in a management
dead-lock, and the recoverability of the Group’s
investment in this subsidiary and the amount due
from it of HK$60.5 million in aggregate is doubtful.
Accordingly, the Group’s interest in this
unconsolidated subsidiary has been fully provided
for from the year ended 31 December 1998. In
addition, Sunto was put under a compulsory
winding up pursuant to a court order issued in
2001 and the winding up process has not yet been
completed up to the date of these financial
statements. The Group will not make any further

investment in this subsidiary.

17.

FriEM @2 RAER (8

FREJNEERATIEFEAEBEAFE
CEBIBRAEEEEFEERLD Z
ARARME A EFER A =5 H MK
RAIZEMBEESHABRERNBR TR

RNEBEFHERPBEKL 2 IBEES Y KIED
BBRAR ([ERE]) 51%R ANz K
EEFRBEBRZARBMRAE=H 2 HEEE
RHE B BEER HRZNBRARIZE
BERELERFRABEEE TEARS:
REBEHZWEARMIRETBEER 2]
EUHTFHEAERM- AR EESR AZN
BRAABIZERER ECRARRE FTAARSE
ERZMB AR 2R EBRZMNBARZ
R 3k& 60,500,000/ 7T 88 & Uk B 15 AR &
MoE L NEBATEZAGETARE 2
MEARAESEBREE—NLANFE+ZA
=t+t—HLEFERELZEEE LN E
BRBEN ST —FRMz B ERDL
Woakl 5% BFREFREEXRMBRED
B R ToRk e ANE BT 2 M B A A D
Fa&E—FHRE-
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31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY 18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FriE—XHAREHERES

Company
NN
2005 2004
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F# T

Unlisted investment, at cost ELEMRE KAE

46,030 -

Amount due from a FE I — K FE[E 1§ B 82 R 5K

jointly-controlled entity

The amount due from the jointly-controlled entity
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment. The carrying amount of the amount
due from jointly-controlled entity approximate to

its fair value.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity is as

169 -

46,199 -

U —FHFAZEHERRRAR L B
o REEEER - B — K AREHE
RZBEEERELA T ERS

AAZEHERZFBOT:

follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit
registration interest power sharing
Name FMARL HE#EE KRE® FE{EF  Principal activities
=L 1 3t 26 Batk Aotk Bolkk FEER
Fuzhou Dartong Mechanic PRC/Mainland China 49 50 49  Manufacture and
and Electronic Company R B K B sale of enamelled

Limited (“Fuzhou Dartong”)*
BMAKBEERNEBRAF
(MamxaEl)~

The investment in Fuzhou Dartong is directly held
by the Company.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or
other Ernst & Young International member firms
and registered as a foreign investment enterprise
in Mainland China.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY 18. FiE—XHEEHIERES (H)

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised TERETAEEXLREHEE 2 KEER
financial information of the Group’s jointly- B2

controlled entity:

2005
—ETRF
HK$’000
FET
Share of the jointly-controlled EEHERZEHERBEERAR:
entity’s assets and liabilities:
Non-current assets ERBEE 35,697
Current assets mEEE 12,422
Current liabilities MEBAE (1,616)
Net assets BEFE 46,503
Share of the jointly-controlled JEMEHRAIEH BB EA:
entity’s results:
Revenue A 18,333
Other income Hfbug A 1,777
Total revenue FERL N 20,110
Total expenses B (20,723)
Tax | -

Loss after tax RS TR (613)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. FiEBE AR RS

Group Company
r%8 L
2005 2004 2005 2004

—2F5F -FENF —-FTLF —-TEMF

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET

FLEmEE KAE

Unlisted investments,
at cost

BHEEFE

Share of net assets

FERf— KB 2 DRI R

Amount due to an
associate

B

Provision for impairment

The amount due to an associate at 31 December
2004 was interest-free, unsecured and not

repayable within one year.

The Group’s associates had no significant effect
on the results or assets of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2005.

During the year, the Company entered into an
agreement with the existing shareholders of the
Company’s associate for the disposal of the
Company’s entire interest in that associate, for a
net cash consideration of HK$120,000. On 8
March 2005, the Company and that associate
entered into a deed of termination pursuant to
which the amount due to that associate was

waived.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AHERE

Group

rEE
2005 2004
“EEHE Z—ZZ2TOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHE T

Listed equity investments, at fair value: AR E A F(E:

Hong Kong BB - 20,240
Unlisted equity investment, at cost JEETMR AR E KA 3,477 3,477
Provision for impairment VIRERE L (3,477) -

- 3,477
- 23,717
During the year, the gross gain on disposal of the FAHERNEETEELMRARE &
Group’s available-for-sale listed equity investments W %513,664,0008 T (ZETMEF E)E
recognised in the income statement amounted to RiEERER (Kise) »
HK$13,664,000 (2004: nil) (note 6).
The above investments consist of investments in LR EBFERBRABS 2RE RZEF
equity securities which were designated as AFE—A— R ZSHREETEEITHESH
available-for-sale financial assets on 1 January EE BEBRTHAXZEMA R
2005 and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.
The fair value of listed equity investments are based EWRAEEZ A ETV IR R BT &

on quoted market prices.
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Company previously held an indirect equity
interest of 50% in &I AARM TEBR A F
(“Hefei Everbright”), an unlisted joint venture
established in the PRC which was accounted for
by the Group as a subsidiary at 31 December
2008. In the prior year, the Group disposed of its
24.5% equity interest in Hefei Everbright to
independent third parties at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$2,980,000 (note 38).
According to the subcontracting agreement
entered into between the Group and the joint
venture partners of Hefei Everbright, the Group
forfeited its rights to exercise any significant
influence or control over the financial and operating
policies of Hefei Everbright in return for fixed and
guaranteed annual subcontracting fees.
Accordingly, Hefei Everbright lost its status as a
subsidiary of the Group and was not equity
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 28
“Investments in Associates”. The Group’s
investment in Hefei Everbright was reclassified to
the long term investment accordingly and was
stated at the Group’s share of the net assets of
Hefei Everbright as at the date when the Group’s
forfeiture of its control/influence became effective,
less any impairment losses. During the year, the
investment in Heifei Everbright is designated as
an available-for-sale investment upon the adoption
of HKAS 39.

Having regard to the deteriorating financial position
of Hefei Everbright during the year, the directors
are in the opinion that the investment in Hefei
Everbright is not likely to be recoverable and
accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$3,477,000
has been charged to current year’s consolidated
income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21, BEFYE
Group
x5
2005 2004
—EERF —EENMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
Cost as at 31 December* RT+ZA=+—HZKx* 555,509 504,868
Add: Attributable profits from the M EIETEEMEZ &
pre-sale of properties - 68,958
Less: Progress instalments received g8 B UGE S 5 AR IE - (223,221)
555,509 350,605
Transferred to properties for sale EEILEME (70,330) -
Portion classified as current assets TIERBNE 2 58 5 (194,133) (289,102
Non-current assets EMEE E 291,046 61,503

*

Included interest capitalised amounting to
HK$6,873,000 (2004: HK$17,413,000).

The properties under development are situated in
Beijing, Mainland China. A plot of land (the “Land”)
where certain of the Group’s properties under
development and properties for sale were erected
was pledged to a bank for a bank loan of
approximately HK$317 million as at 31 December
2005. Such bank loan is repayable in 2007
(note 30).

During the period, the Group has adopted HK-Int
3 to the pre-completion contracts for the sale of
development properties entered into on or after 1
January 2005. Further details of the accounting
treatments are set out in note 2.2(e). Deposits
received from the buyers of the Group’s properties
under development in respect of which no profit
has been recognised were carried as a current
liability at the balance sheet date.

. BIER & K 2 F) 86,873,000/ 7T (=
TEP 4 17,413,000 7T) °

BHRAYECNPEIER AEERE EE
RERTUMERALEMEZ L ([£
W) ERR-_ETERF T _A=1T—H85A
21#49317,000,000% 7T 2 $R1TE F » A — K
RITER ZERTEREAR_FTTLFE
& (MFFE30) -

HA AKERR —_TTRFE-A—Rzlz
BRIVAMHEEERMEZZTTH ALK
MELRES . BRAZFETRIETAE—
FHIBENRHT2.206) - RAEBBRERFY
EMEREBMMEEMNK FHERZTER
HEAERBDAE-
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued) 21. BEREFYE (&)

Further details of the Group’s properties under AEBERPYWHEZE —SFBHNFER
development are included on page 178 of the F178H -

annual report.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, FENFRE-ZERHEMERRR
RECEIVABLES

Group Company
KE KAF
2005 2004 2005 2004

—®PEfF -BPNF -BLEF -BIMF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET

Deposits for the acquisition A N ER] 4

of:

An associate —REEE DA 38,054 - 27,000 -

Property interests LIEL 2 9,845 - - -
Other receivables H b B K 10,509 57,427 1,183 981
Prepayments TE T A 24,381 11,343 1,333 919
Deposits HisA 2,551 2,395 1,619 1,621
Carrying amount at R+ZHA=+t—HB2

31 December REE 85,340 71,165 31,135 3,521
Current portion BN HA &6 5 (37,212) (68,539) (4,135) (3,521)
Non-current portion JERNERE 48,128 2,626 27,000 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

On 29 November 2004, the Group entered into
certain share purchase agreements with two
independent third parties (the “Vendors”) for the
acquisition of an aggregate of 21% equity interests
in Beijing Haidian Science Park Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Haidian”) for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$126 million.
During the year, deposits of HK$38,054,000 had
been paid to the Vendors. On 10 April 2006, the
Company made an press announcement for
extending the completion date of the proposed
acquisition to 28 June 2006. Further details of the
proposed acquisition were set out in the
Company’s various press announcements made
from 2 December 2004 to 10 April 2006 and a
circular dated 25 April 2005 to the Company’s
shareholders. The deposits paid were carried as
non-current assets in the consolidated balance
sheet.

On 5 December 2005, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition
of a property interest in Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$98,426,000. The deposits
paid of HK$9,845,000 were carried as non-current
assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

Included in the other receivables under current
assets as at 31 December 2004 were
HK$28,269,000 and HK$11,308,000, which
represented the amounts due from two companies
established in the PRC. Such balances were fully

repaid during the year.

22.

BENRE -RERE M EWK (8

MR-_ZEZMF+—A -+ hB AEEHEM
%ﬁi% H(F,ﬁDpTiﬂxf\ﬁ%E\ﬁ%
% WE LR EHEEZER OB R
(Ht,‘?\/iﬁ;d ) A Ho1% M AR HERS ,wﬁf,a
#)/126,000,000/% 7o F A B HE T ET
438,054,000 L R — T NFMM A+
B AR BR TR 2k WUl 2 TR A iR
SEXRFENAZTNABEEA 1?E°L:~Hﬁzﬁ%
ZHBERARFTNR _ZEENF+_A=
AE= ET/\¢MH+EIHHFW’E;J%ZR$&
BERMUARTETARRARRABRA-T
%ﬂi@ﬂ:ﬂ—ﬁEZLwEﬁaTiB@@
GEEBBERIEERDEE:

R-ZEERF+_ARE - AEERKESR

EUMERZITILEBEERE REA

98,426,000/ 7t ° B 1 7] & 9,845,000 7T
RiEeEEABRIEFERBEE

AR ZEENFE+—_A=+—HZRH
B EE 2 Ho ot E U SRR HE E MR R A R BB
N Z A A R 328,269,000 T &
11,308,000/ 7T 72 2842 52 RF A 28E
o
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24.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

INVENTORIES 23. HFE&
Group
KEH
2005 2004
—EERF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETL FAET
Raw materials R #7k 16,746 23,901
Work in progress £ 8 9,384 12,809
Finished goods 245K i 79,792 58,585
105,922 95,295
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24, BEWEZREE

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for certain customers,
where payment in advance is required. The credit
period is generally for a period of one month,
extending up to three months for major customers
except for customers of the Group’s property
development business whose settlements are
made in accordance with the sales contract
entered into between the Group and the
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. Trade debtors with balances that are more
than three months overdue are required to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a
large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aging analysis of the trade and bills receivables
as at the balance sheet date, based on the invoice

date, and net of provisions, is as follows:

24, BURIRRRE (8

ERUERLEZEREERRBRERTAME
BB E R 2 Rk D Tan T

Group

rEH
2005 2004
—EERF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
1 to 3 months 12318 A 24,827 13,601
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A - 3,683
7 to 12 months 72121 A 461 29
More than 1 year 1F A - 167
25,288 17,480

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable
approximate to their fair values.

SECURITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

EUSR AR Rig 2R mEREE AT EREE.

25, ROFEFABRANIEBEBRZRS &

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/SHORT TERM HrRE
INVESTMENTS
Group Company
rEE NN
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EERF CZEENFE —EZERF —ZENFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T FHET FET
Listed equity investments ~ &E EFMREHRE -
in Hong Kong, mE
at market value 44,210 12,792 28,297 4,788

The above equity investments at 31 December
2004 were classified as short term investments

held for trading.

R-ZTNF+ A =+—H FiliExE
EREABEEEZRBRE
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26.

27.

Annual Report 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005

—ZTZERE+T-A=+—H

DUE FROM MINORITY EQUITY HOLDERS

The amounts due from the minority equity holders

are unsecured,

interest-free and settled

subsequent to the balance sheet date.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

26. BROLBRREZFEAIRK

JE U BB R a5 45 B A R B %

B RERGE

BRER-

27. BEREASFEYVHRCERAEXK

Group Company
E KAT
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EZEF CZEENFE Z—ETRF —ETTWMF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances ~ H & RiEITHETF 339,439 56,199 4,188 3,464
Time deposits with JRER AT HIFE 5 88
original maturity: ZEBEFER:
Less than three months =@EAR 50,123 131,703 26,550 51,003
Over three months =@R®% - 3,769 - -
389,562 191,671 30,738 54,467
Less: Deposits pledged o EHRTER
for short term ER2FER
banking facilities (K1##30)
(note 30) (18,653) (4,845) (7,500) -
Cash and cash equivalents H& ML EEY 370,909 186,826 23,238 54,467

—ETRFFH




27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$358,421,000 (2004:
HK$128,453,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time
deposits are made for various periods of between
one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits

approximate to their fair values.

27.

ReRESFEYRCERER ()

REER AEBNUARE (ARK]) &
B 2B e RRI1THEF 6 £ A358,421,000
BT (ZEZTH4F 128,453,000 7T) ° A
RETSERABRAEEMER A BIE
A R FAHINTES 1R A5 TE - S 1E AT BT 12
RE AEE AR EREETINEEZ R
THARB AR BEMER.

RITBERBARTERN AR ZFD
MEFE-EHREREFNFR AR —AE
ZEATE AAKEZANER EHKM
W RAREHEMERNEGE-RE
REcFEMHECEAFTRZEEERE
NFERE-
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B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the

28. ENERXR

ENEFINEEARREZAYZRE D

balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is o
as follows:
Group
rEE
2005 2004
—2TIF —-TEOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1 to 3 months 1Z231E A 97,763 80,372
4 to 6 months 4Z=61E A 2,811 2,670
7 to 12 months 7E121E A 935 1,193
More than 1 year FE @ 1F 7,251 5,754
108,760 89,989

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 60-day terms. The carrying
amounts of the trade payables approximate to their
fair values.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

FE R KA NFH B — AR IL60H HRR 32 -
ENERzZEmEEEQAFEMEES.

29, HMESNRREFTEHR

Group Company
rE AT

2005 2004 2005 2004
—E2EE2RFE CZEZ2ENFE —ZT2RF —ZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETL T FET FET
Accruals [EEtEH 16,414 16,242 2,740 3,054
Deposits received BElEe 7,616 14,660 - -
Other payables H A TR 74,105 60,979 10,857 10,799
98,135 91,881 13,597 13,853

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have
an average term of three months.

Last year’s balance included a deposit received
of HK$9,288,000 in respect of the disposal of
certain items of property, plant and equipment,
which was completed during the year.

—ETRFFH

Hib A RIE T E - BARFOR=EA-

* EFRBERERHETFATRZETY
2 BiE R EATINET £9,288,000% L0
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31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 30. STEEITEE
Group
rE
Effective 2005 2004
interest —EERE Z—ZEENE
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 HK$’000
BB R E(%) ZHA Fi&r FET
Current B Ej
Bank loans - secured RITER—BIHEA 55-17.0 2006 96,154 28,269
Non-current JEBNEA
Bank loans - secured RITER - BHA 6.3 2007 317,308 310,959
413,462 339,228
Group
KE
2005 2004
—EERF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETL FAET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: JEEBIETER
Within one year or on demand —FRHIREKR 96,154 28,269
In the second year B F 317,308 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFAT (BREEMT) - 310,959
413,462 339,228
Annual Report 2005 —ZZ H FF 1R
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

As at 31 December 2005, the Group’s bank loans
were secured by:

(i) the pledge of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to approximately HK$18,653,000
(2004: HK$4,845,000) (note 27);

(i) a legal charge over certain of the Group’s
leasehold buildings situated in Mainland
China (note 13);

(ifi) a legal charge over certain of the Group’s
leasehold land situated in Mainland China
(note 15);

(iv) a legal charge over the Land (note 21);

(v) a legal charge over certain of the Group’s

investment properties (note 14); and

(vi) a legal charge over certain properties of an
independent third party.

31. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due to related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The carrying amounts of the
amounts due to related companies approximate
to their fair values.
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30.

31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZZEZERF+_A=+—H FrEERT
ERATI S EEE A

(i) N H 4918,653,000/8 7T (— TZ P
F 14,845,000/ 7T) 2 FEHA 7 U
(Pt #%27) :

(ii) AEBETHHBEEEF 2 EZ2TH
a0 (F¥ax13) :

iy AEEETFTHHEELH 2 ETER
a0 (Fyax15)
(iv) EHEE#RE (MsE21)

v) AEEBETEREMRZATHE
(MfFE14) &

vi) BUF=FETHWEZEEMR

BNEBREATARMK

ENEEERABAZRABELM RE K
I #EBE E R K B ARER RIR 2R
HEREQAFERE-
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31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. EEBIE

AEERFRAZEERARBEREESR

and assets during the year are as follows: #HHT
Deferred tax liabilities EEBiEaE
Revaluation
of properties
BEEWE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2004, 31 December RZZEEME—A—8-
2004 and 1 January 2005 +TZA=+—BR-ZZEZERAF—-H—H -
Deferred tax charged to the FRNEBERERNRZ
income statement during EERIE (KFE10)
the year (note 10) 794
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZERAF+_A=+—8 794
Deferred tax assets ELEBEEE
Provision
B
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2004, 31 December RZZEZEMFE—H—H
2004 and 1 January 2005 +—A=+—BAR-—_ZTEEREFE—-A—H 1,000
Exchange differences M 5 ZE 5 21
At 31 December 2005 R_TEZERFE+_A=+—H 1,021
Annual Report 2005 —ZZ H FF 1R
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32.

33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=-A=+—H

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$72,710,000 (2004: HK$31,016,000), subject
to the agreement of the Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in companies
that have been loss-making for some time.

At 31 December 2005, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2004: Nil) for
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as
the Group has no liability to additional tax should
such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to
its shareholders.

DEFERRED INCOME

During the year, the Group received government
grants of HK$177,906,000 which represented
partial refund of land premium in respect of a piece
of land for a property redevelopment project
situated in Beijing, the PRC. As at 31 December
2005, the project was still in progress and the
related costs incurred by the Group for the project
included under

were “Properties under

development” in non-current assets.

The Group had obtained proper approval from the
relevant government authority for the grants. No

other contingencies are attached to such grants.

The government grants were not recognised as
income during the year and were accounted for

as non-current liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Annual Report 2005 —ZZ F FF 1R

32.

33.

i SE B IE (80

REERBBEETIEEER72,710,000
B (ZZZTPU4F : 31,016,0008 70) * B
HE% BiGE I BEREELEBBARZ
H &R EF - AR EEHIBEBE Z AR
B 8515 B8 — R BSR ML B R X F S 1B
RIEMEERIBE E -

R_ZBETRF+T_A=+—H KTEELTE
ETREARABEREERBEEE(CZTZEN
FE) REASMERDE K- A% B S
FLULE —F BN BINRIA 2 B (T B Bt
HETWERABREEL Z &M EMNER
MR-

ARmtEARERRES MRS MAFE
MAEREE-

R 13LON

F A AN & B BUT I A20177,906,000
B2 Bt IR AR AL R — Y
¥ER2EE ZRBOMERLD-N - TF
AFE+—A=+—H ZBEENEEES"
MAKBEGRZESEE 2 BBRAES|E
FERBEEBETZ[ERPWE]-

AEERZEHDEEMSRNERAER
IEX - ZF MBI B AR MR
fif 1~

FA BB I ERERSWA - AR
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34.

35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
2005 2004
—2TEF C-BENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FE T
Authorised: SERE -
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,000 /% & i%
of HK$0.10 each MECI10E T2 L iEmM 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BBITREBEEHHE:
1,544,831,000 ordinary shares 1,544,831,000 % & %
of HK$0.10 each HEC10B L2 L &M 154,483 154,483
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. EERBEBROEE

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 25 May 2001 whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group,
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The share option scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years ending on
24 May 2011, after which no further options will
be granted. For options granted before 1
September 2001, the exercise price of options was
determined by the board and was the higher of
the nominal value of the Company’s shares and
90% of the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the
five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant. For options granted on or after 1
September 2001, the exercise price of the options
is the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one share.

ARABAR_ZEE-—FRAA-THBERK—
HELERBROETE Bl ARRES
ERE TRBRFEAKEES (BRAK
BEMKERARZES) EMELARBER
0 #E - LA BRRE 2K 2 B 1D 18 o 3088 Ak 10 1
AEREE-E-——FRA-TWAAMT
F-HEAR ZRETAHRLBLABK
RN -_FT—FALA-HARLZE
SERBRMEM S EERERNEZITE
BEVREFEEE HERARARMNEE
HERRIELERABROEZEANAEZ
EHARRABNDEREBRERXIMARR
A ([B2Fr]) 2 F19 U EZ290% (A&
SERE) RN _TE—FNLA AU
BREZEARBROENS BXRBEKR
2 TR ER KD HE RELELRE
B EERBRNDEBRIMZBTEARE
ERbEARBROBEAMABEZXA
B EBMI Az FHRTEZ &S E S0
BEABBROBEMR THEARMNBE K

P o
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35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ok MR

31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the amendments (the “New Rules”) to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, any options
granted after September 2001 must comply with
the provisions of the New Rules. If the Company
wishes to grant options to its directors or other
eligible participants in future, a new share option
scheme in compliance with the New Rules is to
be approved and adopted by the shareholders of
the Company in a general meeting. Since the
adoption of the New Rules, no new share option
scheme has been approved or adopted.

During the year, no share options were granted or
exercised and there were no outstanding options
at 31 December 2005 (2004: Nil).

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 55
of the financial statements.

The Group’s share premium account mainly
arose from shares issued at a premium.
Pursuant to a special resolution of the
shareholders of the Company passed on
29 September 2005, the share premium
account was cancelled and utilised to
eliminate the accumulated losses of the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

36. RESERVES (continued) 36. &M (&)

(a)

Group (continued)

In accordance with the PRC regulations,
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to
transfer part of their profits after tax to the
statutory reserve fund, before profit
distributions are made. The amounts of the
transfers are subject to the approval of the
boards of directors of these companies, in
accordance with their joint venture
agreements and/or articles of association.
The statutory reserve fund is non-
distributable and restricted as to use.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years
remain eliminated against the consolidated
reserves as explained in notes 2.5 and 16
to the financial statements.

(a)

rEME (&)

1% JR R B FEAR 9] 35 T e B K RE
Az REBMEBRRELEND
& A 2B R E BBy BRI 1808 T 88 R
AERBES BREFBEABRZREFR
AzEEFERZAZAEMELS
F AT BRAALE SEEREES
TRk BERERBEMRH -

AN B A R R B sE2.5 R 16FT R A2
RBEFERBHERRMELEN
B ETHEDNGRAREEST -
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RESERVES (continued) 36. f#fE (&)
(b)  Company (b) A2TF
Retained
profits/
Share (accumulated
premium losses)
account RE =T, Total
% 2% E Bk (REFHR) BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2004 R-_ZTmME—F—H 677,882 (341,335) 336,547
Net loss for the year FREBFRE
(note 11) (P 5E11) - (19,810) (19,810)
At 31 December 2004 RZZEZTWHF+A
and at 1 January 20056 =+—HER_ZEZAHF
—HA—H 677,882 (361,145) 316,737
Cancellation of share R R E
premium (677,882) 677,882 -
Net loss for the year FREBEFE
(note11) (HMFEE11) - (48,708) (48,708)
At 31 December 2005 RZEZTREF
+=—R=+— - 268,029 268,029
Pursuant to a special resolution of the BER-_ZZTRFAA-_tTNABEBEGBZE
shareholders of the Company passed on BIRBER AR 2R BRETHEEY
29 September 2005, the share premium B UEEARTIZ 2EER-
account of the Company was cancelled and
utilised to eliminate the accumulated loss
of the Company.
37. BUSINESS COMBINATION 37. EBKEHt

On 22 July 2005, the Group acquired a 80% equity
interest in Xin Yang for Nil consideration. Xin Yang

is engaged in property development.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 37. EBA6t(#)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and EZHERWEBR A HINEERBEATF
liabilities of Xin Yang as at the date of acquisition BEREZWER ZEEREESLT:

and the corresponding carrying amounts
immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition Carrying
s B B ER amount
AN ] BREE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M = FHET FET
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 13 1,242 1,242
Cash and bank balances ReERBITET 1,510 1,510
Properties under development BERPYE 8,457 8,457
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT FRIE & E A U BR 3R 553 553
Amounts due from equity holders FE IR R FF B A KR 7,480 7,480
Accruals and other payables FEErE A & E ' BR 3K (95) (95)
Minority interests LERERER (19,147) (19,147)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash ERWENBART v ReRBESFEMR
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a AFEITWT
subsidiary is as follows:
HK$’000
FH&T
Cash and bank balances acquired BARSRIBETETU
and net inflow of cash and cash LEBYREHREBARZ
equivalents in respect of the RERBEEEMREA
acquisition of a subsidiary F 1,510
Since its acquisition, Xin Yang contributed B UGB s ERREE ST RE+— A
HK$1,736,000 to the consolidated loss attributable =+ —HIEEEAK,736,000 T A A 7
to the equity holders of the Company for the year R% A4E 5 A JEIL 424 518 2 R AR EE A
ended 31 December 2005. Xin Yang had not YN E BB R A U A

contributed any revenue to the Group for the

current year.
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 37. ¥EB A6t (&)
Should the acquisition took place at 1 January MKER—ZETERF— A — BT SBi5E
2005, Xin Yang would contribute HK$3,218,000 MEBEE-_ZTTRFT-_A=T—HLFE
to the consolidated loss attributable to the equity AAREZFBEAERLEES BB ER
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 3,218,000/ JT °

December 2005.

38. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 38. HLEBERERME

STATEMENT
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKBA A
2005 2004
—EEHF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FE&T
Net assets disposed of: ENEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W BB LEE - 6,680
Cash and bank balances ReRETET - 378
Inventories FE - 3,102
Prepayments, deposits FERREBE ZE Rk
and other receivables H b fE U 3R - 5,151
Trade payables & BR 3k - (450)
Other payables and accruals HAth FE 3
Rt E R - (1,049)
Tax payable JE BB IR - (169)
Dividend payable FET AR B - (67)
Minority interests LR R R - (7,178)
- 6,398
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWNB AR Z W - 59
- 6,457
Satisfied by: AT AT
Reclassified as a ENMoBEARBIEE
long term investment - 3,477
Cash Be - 2,980
- 6,457
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31 December 2005
—EERF+=A=+—H

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

Disposal of a subsidiary (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the disposal of a

subsidiary is as follows:

38.

FERERBRME ()

HE-—XKMELQF (&)

FRALE - ZWBARZRENRAELEE
WRANFEDOTMT

2005 2004
—ZETRF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETL FAEIT
Cash consideration REeERE - 2,980
Cash and bank balances EHRE MRTET
disposed of - (378)
Net inflow of cash and cash ERLE —XMBARA
equivalents in respect of Z2HEERREERE
the disposal of a subsidiary ) m A5 R - 2,602
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. HARAE

During the year, the Group provided guarantees in
favour of certain banks for mortgage loans granted
by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s
properties under development to the extent of
approximately HK$242 million in aggregate. As at
the balance sheet date, mortgage loans in
aggregate of approximately HK$200 million were
utilised by the buyers of the Group’s properties
under development and properties for sale.

The Company had no material contingent liabilities
as at the balance sheet date.

FANAREERE TRITAREEZEFY
E2ERBE B RIBER MZEFRTED
EIRE H£49242,000,0008 T-REE B A
EERERMERGEMEZEREHA
BB E R & £4200,000,000/% T ©

NEER ARARAEEFMEAXAREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2005
—ETRF+=-R=+—H

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40. REBNZH
(a) As lessor (a) EAHEA
The Group leases certain of its investment AEEREBELEHOLHELAES
properties (note 14) under operating lease TFHREWE (WiE14) ZEHO2
arrangements, with leases negotiated for BEEFENT—ZE2_+F T
terms ranging from one to twenty years.
At the balance sheet dates, the Group had REHE R RXEERE T AJEUBK &
total future minimum lease receivables under MOz ARKEEKAE S LEER
non-cancellable operating leases with its T %)) #A e B BR:
tenants falling due as follows:
2005 2004
—EZERF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT
Within one year —F K 6,457 3,895
In the second to fifth years, F_EERF
inclusive (BHEEEMF) 19,186 15,118
After five years TFR® 51,301 53,819
76,944 72,382

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office and
factory premises under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to
ten years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ROk MR

31 December 2005
—ETRFE+=-R=+—H

40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40. REBNZTH (8
(continued)
(b)  As lessee (continued) (b) {EREBEA (&)
At the balance sheet dates, the Group and REE B REE LA QG RE TA]
the Company had total future minimum BB EHAN 2 ARFEENES
lease payments under non-cancellable AR T I B A 2 B
operating leases falling due as follows:
Group Company
N PNV
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EZIF ZEENFE Z—ETRF =—ZTTOF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FA&T FET
Within one year —FR 5,669 5,523 3,987 3,985
In the second to fifth years, 2 - ZEHF
inclusive (BEHEREME) 5,602 9,785 3,740 7,677
After five years hER® 778 774 - -
12,049 16,082 7,727 11,662

In addition, the Group is required to pay an
annual fee of approximately HK$280,000 in
respect of a leasehold land in Mainland
China from the year 1992 up to the year
2042 with a 20% increment for every five
years. During the year, an annual fee of
HK$397,000 was charged to the
consolidated income statement of the Group
(2004: HK$392,000).

WiN KEBE— AN _FRE-F
M-F | AREEPE —REE
+ 3 5 F B 49280,000 00 F B
BRFEIN20% - FR NEBL
FH4397,0008 LE RIS BaEE
B (ZZZ P4 392,000 7T ) ©
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41. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 40(b) above, the Group and the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. EIE

Company had the following commitments at the

balance sheet dates:

B b 3BT R 40(b) Ay sttt 4% & FH A9 A HE SO0 -
BEBH AXEERARB A THIHAE:

Group Company
E AT
2005 2004 2005 2004
—2ERRF CZEZ2ENF —TERF —ZETNOF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHETL FHET FHETL FHETL
Authorised, but not contracted for: R IEIB R T4
Acquisition of an associate I BE — KRB & D7) 24,038 - 24,038 -
Construction works EREMEZ
in respect of properties BETRE
under development 1,745,145 159,123 - -
1,769,183 159,123 24,038 -
Contracted, but not provided for: B i] 411B K B & :
Acquisition of Beijing Haidian WL R
(note 22) (Ff3E22) 89,896 126,000 64,731 90,000
Construction works BEERPUMEZ
in respect of properties BETRE
under development 75,523 93,808 - -
Purchases of items of property, BEVE -BE
plant and equipment HBIEE 10,332 - - -
Purchase of an investment BEEREME
property 88,581 - - -
264,332 219,808 64,731 90,000
2,083,515 378,931 88,769 90,000
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEHEALRS
BRAMEHRREMIED AN 2R
5 REEIN NEER ER L E AR
BATETUTERRS:

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances (a)
detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group also had the
following material transactions with related
parties during the year:

Group
rEE
2005 2004
—EERRHF —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M= FAETL FAEIT
Commission fees paid BEffEEEA (i) - 4,624
Sales to the joint venturer HeEdh s (ii) 18,332 -
Purchases of plant and meae&ErEE
machinery from joint venturer  Hi = & # 22 (iii) 11,703 -
Rental expenses paid to B DHBRR
minority equity holders HeFxX (iv) 305 -
Rental income received B U2 WA (v) 626 -
Notes: oz
(i) The commission fees of last year were (i) EFEZREERNAEEAREERT
paid to a real estate agent, in which a MERMBEBRBAARAAR —REERH
director of the Company had an equity RAEE REMEREZ A
interest, for services provided in respect TEERA BAEMe XEE M FEH
of the sale of the Group’s properties ERBUEBERS-
under development. The directors
considered that the commission rate was
comparable to the commission rates
charged by other real estate agents.
(ii) Sales to the joint venturer (the “Joint (ii) ARR—BEZNAREEF2AEEH

Venturer”) of the Group’s jointly-controlled
entity, in which a director of the Company
is also a director, were made at the selling
prices the Joint Venturer charged its
customers.

(iii) The consideration for the plant and
machinery was determined with reference
to the market values of the relevant assets
estimated by independent professional
valuers.

REHEBza%Ey (885 ) FifE
WE DEAEFOREFUBZER
1o

(i) WBEREBFLIREDZZEBELHEEMGE
Bt B EEMT 2 mEREE.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Notes: (continued)

(iv)

The rentals were charged at HK$76,190
per month commencing from September
2005. The directors considered that the
rental charged was comparable to the
rentals of similar properties.

The rentals from companies in which a
director of the Company is also directors
were charged at HK$52,000 per month
during the year. The directors considered
the rental charge was comparable to
market rates.

(b) Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

Annual Report 2005

During the year, the jointly-controlled
entity of the Group leased its factory
premises and the piece of land where
the factory premises was erected
from the Joint Venturer free of

charge.

On 29 December 2005, Ebohr
executed a guarantee for a term of
one year commencing from 25
January 2006 in favour of the Joint
Venturer for a bank loan of
approximately of HK$16.3 million
granted to the Joint Venturer by a
bank. The bank loan was not utilised
by the Joint Venturer at the balance
sheet date and was fully drawn down
by the Joint Venturer subsequent to

the balance sheet date.

—ETRFFH

42.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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—ETRF+=-R=+—H

FEEALXRS (@)

(a)

i aE - (&)

(iv) HeB -_ZZRFNALREAR
76,1908 Lo EE R A - AT UKEUE
CHRABMEBSES-

v) FR REARA -BEEZNR
HEZ2ETRAZESREAR
52,0007% JT° EE R4 - A YR A
S HETIGEERE-

\|
/

y
ol

IEANTZEMR 5:

FRARE K RHEHE BE
BRAETHEEREY X
MBEMEMRE L -

—
=

(ii) RZBEZERF+ZA=ZTH
H fEIRITR T EE L
16,300,000/ TR 1T E K A&
BEABEIRR BTN
F-A-t+RHEHEAH —F-
HEZLHEB 687 LEFHA
ERARTEF BEREHE
BEHRMER
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) As disclosed in the consolidated
balance sheet, the Group had
outstanding advances payable to a
company, in which a director of the
Company had equity interests of
HK$134,000 (2004: HK$3,374,000),
as at the balance sheet date. The
advances are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

(if) As disclosed in the consolidated
the Group had
outstanding receivables from the

balance sheet,

minority equity holders of Xin Yang
of HK$7,480,000 (2004: Nil), as at
The
unsecured,

the balance sheet date.
advances are
interest-free and settled subsequently
to the balance sheet date.

Compensation of key management

personnel of the Group:

42. BEREALXRE (&)

() HAEBMEALZARENER:

B EBEEABRIEE:
REE B AEBENAQT
—ZEFHEEERZ K
NAEIREEEAFE134,0008
JC ( ZZTP0 4 : 3,374,000
) BHERZAEEMR &
BEREETEENRE-

—
=

iy HUGEEEBBERAER
REZ B REEEKEED
HRRZABERBESRS
7,480,000/ T (Z 2 Z PO
m) BHR2RAEER &
BERERGEERREEE-

(d AEBEXT2EEABZME:

2005 2004

—EERF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Short term employee benefits 52 Hi (g & & 7 8,466 5,470

Post-employment benefits BB 1% 13 A 107 14
Total compensation paid to ENFEEREAE

key management personnel HWERSE 8,673 5,484
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42.

43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Compensation of key management

personnel of the Group (continued)

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments
comprise bank loans and cash and short term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
trade payables, other receivables and other

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised
below.
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42.

43.

FEEALXRS ()

d FAEBEITEEEABZHEE)

ERESTHE 2 E - THBENY
TBmAMIFES ©

BHEAREEESEREE

AEBZFZ2ERIABRRERITENR RE
RESER HEERTAZEERERIR
AEBEBEEET AEEEEME KR
BEBZEMEENRAE FIa0E KR
A< BR R L A R LR B L A R A e

AEEeMIAMELTIERRARESR
ENXEAR SNERR FEERRNREE
TR EF W R HBE TR L& B
BRZBR BRABRERBAMT-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s debt obligations with a floating interest
rate.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The
Group’s policy is to maintain between 35% and
65% of its interest-bearing borrowings at fixed
interest rates. The Group currently has not
implemented any procedures to hedge its cashflow
interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. Approximately 6% (2004:
11.7%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of
the operating units making the sale, whilst
approximately 5.2% (2004: 5.7%) of costs and
expenses are denominated in other than the
functional currency of the operating units incurring
these costs and expenses. The Group currently
has not implemented any procedures to hedge its

foreign currency risk.

43.

MEEREEREEEREE (8

BEREFNREAR

AEBEMEETSMNEESRRETEZRE
FEHNEEBETAR-

AEBZBRRABRERE S MTEES
EIREF AN - NE B Z BR B REF
35%E65%:T BEER/ERMEE A EER
B E BT IR FEPERSRENE
[\ B o

S EE 2 B

REE 2 ZE SHMNER K -B BARR B8
ETBEBERSNEEEM 2 NEER AN
ERIEB- AEEBDH6R(ZFTF M
Fi11.7%) ZHENETHEREEMLZ
WetE U EEIE ©5.2% (—FEF M
Fi5.7%) ZHMARFAXIAEEZFK AR
F z 2@ BN 2 e E BN INE D E-
AN 55 B3R B 30 B B 1T AT AR Fr T HAME
[\ B o
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43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents,
available-for-sale investments and securities
measured at fair value through profit or loss, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, convertible
bonds, other interest-bearing loans and finance
leases. The Group’s policy is that not more than
75% of borrowings should mature in any 12-month
period. 23.3% of the Group’s debts would mature
in less than one year as at 31 December 2005
(2004: 8.3%).
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AEBERERRT Y ESHRTE
EEHE A BEEE NN ES A
BB SR TR o AN AR E T
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AEEEMEREERERAS MRS EE
7 AT B E RIR A FEF A G X EE
ZEH FREERBRRAF=TXE &
BRBEEAENZETLAREE

RBE SRR
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44. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 37.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements, the Group also has the following
subsequent events:

(@)

On 9 January 2006, the registered capital
of Xin Yang was increased from
HK$25,000,000 to HK$85,100,000. The
increase in registered capital were
contributed by the equity holders on a pro
rata basis to their respective equity holding
in Xin Yang.

On 25 January 2006, the Group provided a
loan guarantee given in favour of Fuzhou
Dartong, the jointly-controlled entity of the
Group, regarding a loan facility of HK$17.3
million granted by a bank to Fuzhou Dartong

for a period of one year commencing from
January 2006. Further details of which are

RERRSEHE

T mR Mo WEEN AEES B
BRETUATEXRFRE:

(@) RZZEZERF—ANLA &Kzl
f% A~ B 25,000,000/ T # =
85,100,000 7T o 7% it Ax A 15 hn 2k &
BABFEARBEEEENEGRE
L BIPREIE &

b) RITBEXNF-—A-+THB XKH
RIRTETEARZESERBREMNK
82 17,300,0008 TE K EE BB
MARBELERER BT RF
— AR —F-ARFABIER AR
AR -_ZEZRF-A -+ RATE

. L IRE DA o
set out in the Company’s press
announcement dated 26 January 2006.
(c) On 6 April 2006, the Company entered into ©) RomE~aEmAxA AATES

a joint venture agreement with Citychamp
Dartong Company Limited and Jiangsu
Qingjiang M&E Company Limited (“Jiangsu
M&E”), whereby the Company will invest
HK$24,000,000 in cash for a 25% interest
in the registered capital of the Jiangsu M&E.
Further details of which are set out in the
Company’s press announcement dated 10
April 2006.

WRBEROHDERARRIEHKNES
IHWEBR AR ([JIEKE ) 517
A EBE Bt AR R B RAIER
BEFMBAZ26% R TER
24,000,000/ 7T B BFF 18 #H AR
jﬁ—77M$EH+EW$Zﬁ
5 Al
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45.

46.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2005
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COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 to the
financial statements, due to the adoption of new
HKFRSs during the current year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been
revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain opening balance adjustments
have been made and certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the current
year’s presentation and accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 April 2006.
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